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BEVERLEY NOREEN COLLEY

AND CAROL ANTHORY PRATT PLAINTIFF/RESPONDENT

Maurice Frankson instructed by Gaynair and Fraser
for Appellants

C.M.M. Daley and Miss Carol Vissell for Respondent

February 15-18 and April 2¢, 1993

ROWE P, ;

By his judgment delivereq on Octcber 4, 1941,
Morris J. (Ag.) ordecred the appellants tc guit and deliver up
possession of premises known as 11 Bronzewing Place on or before
January 31, 1992, tc the respondent, to pay to him the sum of
$42,30L.00 for rent and/or mesne profits and to remove the caveat
which they had lodged in respect of 1i bronzewing Place. The
cdefendants appealed. No respondentct’s notice or cross-appeal was
filed by the plaintiif. When the appeal came on for hearing
other matters had to be interposed and this led zo the lengthening
of the appeal process. in the end, however, we allowed the appeal,
set aside the judgment and order . of the Court below, and granted
an awmendment of the defence to include a counter-claim for Specific

Performance of the contracrv pleaded in the defence, upon payment to
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the plaintif ffesponcent of the valance of the purchase money
with interest fixed at 15% per annum. These now are reasons
which persuaded me to arrive at that decision.

in 1979, brs, Winnifrcd Cecclia Pratt, widow, aged
between 60 and §2 years, a retiied niu-wife lived alone at
11 Bromzewing Place, &t. andrew. Her son Carol Prati, now a
recired steel fabricator, livang in Florida, U.S5.a. had migrated
to the U.S.A., in 19¢8. He last lived in Jamaica for fourteen
monchs between Wovembker 1976 and mMavrch 197¢. It appears that the
late Mr. Alty Sasso, an insurance executive and a very active
official of the Jamaica Cricket Board cf Control was a friend and
business-advigor of Mrs. Pratt.

Mi, Pratt, whose evidence on this aspect cof the case was
not challenged, said that before migrating from Jamalca he bought
premises 11C Emerald kRoad which was registered in the names of his

mother and himself as joint tenants. His mother was living in

those premises in 1970 when he visited Jamaica and it was there that

he first met ir., Alty Sasso. i can inaulge myself for a moment in
thinking that the Cricket Board wished tc acguire 11C Emerald Road
to include it in their plans for the extension of the famous
bapbina Park C(ricket Ground, but be that as it may, an exchange
was arranged in 1974 whereby 11C Emerald Koad was transferred to
the Jamaica Cricket Board of Contrel and premises L1 Bronzewlng
Place was transferred into the names of Mrs. Pratt and her son,
whose address was given as in Los Angeles, California, as joint
tenants. & balancing sum of less than 31,060.006 was due to the
Cricket Board and that accounted for the fact that the title
registered at vVolume 1011 Folic 413 of the Register Book of Titles
remained with the attorneys-at-law for the Cricket Board, until
June 198C¢ when after a great deal of enguiries, it was forwarded
to Livingston, hlexander and Levy on their undertaking tc pey the

outstanding amount.
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Mrs. ¥ratt went to live av L1 Lronzewing Place and remsined
there until the latter part of 1979%. It was about August 1979 that
Mrs. Pratc took the decision to sell 11 Bronzewing Place. The
appellants got wind of this probability and frs. Colliy negotiated
on behalf of her husband and herscelf. MNis. Pratt wished to migrate

<A L

to live with her son in the U.S.A. It was a time said mMrs. Colley

“when peoplc were running away” ftrom Jamaica, and she found the

asking price of $30,500.0U reascnable., #Mrs. Pratt directed her to

U

Mr. Alty sasso wihc collectied the aeposit of 85,50u.00 in three
instalments between 3rd August and 3rd Octobker 1679 for and on behalf
of Mrs., Pratt.

A formal Agreement for Sale was prepared and was eventually
signed on Februaiy Z1i, 19Y%0. In it the vendor was named as
“Winnifred Pratt® and the two appellants were the purchasers. Some

significant clauses of this Agreement vere:

{(a) the Purchase Money of $30,506.00;
(B} an acknowledgement that the deposit

of $5,504.00 was paid prior to the
date of the aAgreement direct to the
vendor s

(ci the date of completion on or before
30th april, 1586; and

- )

"“Special Condition 2" -~ to this effect:
"This Agreement is subject to the
Purchasers raising a first legal
mortgage on the Security of the
premises 1in an amount oif not less
than 5£41,000.00 through the Jamaica
National Building Society at a rate
of interest nct exceeding is% per
annum for not lessg than 15 years on
that Society’s usual terms and con-
dicvions. “he Purchasers hereby
agree vo use their Lest endecavours
to obtain a Commitment for such
Fortgyage and to communicate same to
the Vendor's Actorneys-—at-LdwW O OF
before the 31st wmacch 1960 failing
which the Vendor shall pe at liberty
to cancel the Agrecment and refund
the depesit to the Purchascrs frce
of intecrest less $1U0.40 being the
costs of preparing thic sgreement.”




although the vendor and purchasers signed the Agreement
betcre rr., Afeef Lazarus at Livingston, Alexander and Levy, it
appears that the doGument was prepared presumably by Mr. Sasso,
and presented to the parties for signature. &al1ll the evidence
indicates that from an early time in the negotiations, Mr. Sasso
suggested that i1t would be more advantageous Lo Mrs. Pratt if she
carvied the mortgage herseli as thereby she would obtain a secure
income in excess of what she could receive from an investiment of
the mortgage money in a bank account. The appellancsg accepted
the proposal as tney would not have to find all the purchase
money then to complete the sale. 7This understanding was firmly
held refore and after the siyning of the Agreement for sale and
it will be essential for me to refer later in this judgment to
the relevant correspondence in that regavd.

At this point the parties were aciing as 1f Mrs. Pract
had full authority tec sell and convey il Bronzewing Place. Indeed
she gave possession tc the puréhasers at the ena of 197% on con-
dition that they paid a peppercorn rental of $100.00 per month
and wevre asked to pay land tax and to insure the premises.

The respoudent introduced himself to Messrs. Livingston,
Alexander and Levy by letter dated February £, 1981, Ex. 3, as the
son amd caretaker of his mother’s affairs. In that letter he did
not claim to ke beneficially or legally entitlea to premises
11 Bronzewiny Place but he sought copies of the documents uealing
with the mortgage tramsaction and a statement of account. The
attorneys replied promptiy. They pointed outn in theii letter of
February 24, 1Y%, Ex. 2, that on perusal of the title for the
property his name appeared as a joilnt owner and attached an

Instrument of Transfer for his execution.
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i find the regpondent's reply of karch 7, 1%gl, Ex. 4,

to be curicus. He snowed anxigiy about the sum of $5,506.00

;
which was pailid over to the attorneys as well as to the interest

on the outstanding purchase price which should have been covered
by the wmortgage and after severely reprimanding the attorneys «

for their tardineygs in completing the transaction, r. Prati wrote:

» At this point in time my conclusions are that:

(1) An agreemeni of sale for
this property was made,
signed and dated Feby
2ist 198y, in which, under
Schedule there is shown
varyving items not the least
of which is:

peposit of $5,5%00.00
havinyg been paid
directly to the
vendor® etc., etc.,

and as you will recall that

this full amount has been

Turned over te you by my

mother, and with the excep~-

tion of the cost of preparation
of that aocument, it 1s my hope
that the balance has been
accruing bank interest? Also
there is the item of "Special
Conditions® under which the

#2 par., to me seem guite con-
clusive, and wmy deduction is that
at this time either this documenc
is vold, or we {(ihe vendors) are
due a lot of mortgage payments?

(2) 1 have no intent®@m of rushing into
signing this Instrument of transfer,
and until I (as a valid participant),
get the information reguested 1in nmy
original letter, and I am satisfied
with the existing state of this
transaction, then i shall process
this document.”



The lawyers were offended at the tone of the respondent's
lecter and on April 1, 1981, Ex. 1lU, replied in a challenging
manner. It was confirmed that Livingston, Alexander and Levy
were acting as attorneys tor Krs., Pratt, a statement of account
was forwarded o Mr., Pratt anad for the firsct time it appeared in
writing that the vendors would provide the mortgage. wr. Pratt
did notv accept the invitatiorn to seek independent advice from
other attorneys out wrote back on mMay 4, 19%Bl, Bx. 11, expressing
regret for his previous inaiscretions, but informed the attorneys

that he and his mocher wished to cancel the sale. He wrote:s

"However, at this time my mother and me
desire to cancel the sale of this
property, as the purchaser has informed
me by letter that she has made other
mortgage arrangement, and my mother has
decliaed to return to Jamaica to live,
for her health and medical reasons.”

Mr. Pratt went on to give consequential instructionsg

The attorneys were in a guandary. As is permitted by
Jamaican conveyancing practice, the attorneys were also acting on
behalf of the purchasers. 7Thig practice which proved to be very
convenient in times past when property values were low and
fluctuations in the price of money were unusual, needs urgent review
by the responsible organizations of the legal profession and if
they fail to act, there should be regulatory legislation. I am able
to say this because of the increasingly large number of cases which
have come before me or of which I am aware in which the problems
could have been avoided if this conveyancing practice did not
exist., Be that as it may, Mr. Afeef Lazarus of Livingston,
Alexander and Levy wrote in clear and explicit terms to Mr. Pratt

on dMay 2&, 1901,




He said in part:

“J cannot at this stage negotiate the
chegque which you sent me for the
reason that I can see no way in which
you could cancel the Contract with
Mr. & Mrs. Colley withou: being

- liable to them for breach of contract,

(,/ and it is therefore likely that if
litigation ensues the Court will more
than likely grant to them an Order
against ycu for specific performance
ot the Contract.

The Application by HMr. & irsg. Colley
for a mortgage from the Jainaica
Teachers' Association Housing Co-
cperative Ltd. was, I think, prompted
by the delay in completing this matter
and unless Mr. & piMrs. Colley agree 1o
cancel the Contract and so advise me
in writing, i cannot advise you to

L attempt to back out of the Agreement,

<~} As 1 understand it, Mr. & Hrs, Colley

— nave been ready, willing and able to
conplete the Contract and the delay
in producing Transfer and rorigage
inconvenienced them to a great extent.,
1 ¢o not feel that we can ever justify
an attempt to cancel the contract at
this stage.”

]

¥

Mr, Pratt's reply, dated June 5, 1981, ¥x. Y showed his

8

uneasiness at accepring the attorney's advice, His first choice
was for cancellation of the Contract but if that could not be
<r ) achieved he wighed completion on the terms of the Agreement for

S5ale of February 21, 1950 with special reference to Special

Condition 2.

He continued:

"Regret ably at this time @I must
again refuse to return the completed
Transfer Document, and 1 am sure
that you can understand why, yet if
and when agreement is reached on the
matter of the mortgage, I will only
ff\‘ pe too happy tce comply.”

Was it that KHr. Pratt was leaving a negotiating door open?
The attorneys prodded him once more in their letter of July 23, 19%&i,

Bx., 13
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T must admit that i am not veally

guite sure what you want

Mr, & mrs, Colley to do. The Agree~
ment stipulated that Mr. & rrs. Colley
woulda be obtaining a liortgage from

the Jamaica mational Building society.
This did not materialise for the

simple reason thact your motier indicated
that she would prefer to have herx
woneys invested for a reasonable return
than having 1t deposited into a bank
account., 1 can only reiterate ihat

Hr. & Mrs, Colley have at all times
been 1eady, willing and able to complete
the purchas=s of the premises on the
terms of the Agreement, and when it
seemed uniikely that ycour mother was
going to give the Mortgayge, they wentc
elsewhere and procured commitment tor
finance. I cannot now understand your
trend of thought, and I would like some
clarification from you, preferably by
forwarding the transfer executed by
yourself and your mother so that I can
bring this long outstanding matter to

a close.®

The final letter in this series was written by the
respondent on Auyust 1, 1981, addressed vo [Hessrs. Livingston,

Alexander and Levy. I set it out in full:

"RE: 11 BUUNZEWING PLACE, ST. ANDREW

This is to acknowledge receipt of your
latest letter dated July 23, 1L%&l and
to thank you for the return of

U.5. $1b0u.00 Treasurer's Cheque.

in answer to your guestlion and to repeat
an original reguest, we will give the
mortgage and we reguire that you prepare
the . necessary documents for our
approval, and at which time I sghall
conplete and return the transier
document .

Anything to the contrary continues to be
acceptable (sic).

On vhe matter of ryrental, it is our
incention that you receive all rental
duz and put this to the credit ¢f our
account, thank you.¥
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A Mortgage Deed was prepared and forwarded to the
respondentg Ex. 7. It provided that the appellants would be
the mortgagors, the respondent and his mother would be the
nortgagees; the amount of the mortgage loan would be $21,0006.060
and the rate of interest 12%% per annum. There was provision
for the variation of the rate of interest whelily at the instance
of the mortgagees, Mr. Pratt refused to accep:z the terms of the
nortgage. On Febwuawy 15, 196z, lirs. Pratt gave the appellants a
Notice to guit and this was followed by a Writ on June 5, 19%85
seeking recovery of possession and consegueniial remedies,

Cral evidence was received at the tyrial which went to
confirm the statements in the written documents, to most of which
L have already made reference, However, Mr., Pratt did maintain
that at no time did he have an intention to sell the property at
11 Bronzewing Place,

Hotwithstanding the fact that the respondent did not
sign the original Agrecement for sale, or the instrument of Transfer
or the Mortgage Deed, pMorris J. (Ag.} found that theie was in
existence some menwrandur or hote signed by ithe respondent,

Mr. Pratc, which was referable to the Agxeément of sale, Ex. 1

dated February 21, 1960 sufficient to satisfy the provisions of
Section 4 of the Statute of Frauds, 1077, which is by virtue of
section 4uv of the Interpretation Act, incorporated into the Law

of Jamaica.,

on the third day of the hearing of the appeal, Mr. Daley
told the Court that he had come into the case prepared to support
the judgment of Morris J. (Ag.) for the reasons given by him but
on reflection he was of opinion that larger issues arose which
ought to be addressed and decided by the Court. He then appiied
for leave to file a respondent’s notice which would challenge the
correciness cof the finding of Morris J. (Ag.) that the respondent

had become a party to the original Agreement for Sale,; that the
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purporited variaition ot the contract to provide foxr a vender's
mortgage was invalia, and that the original contract was
cerminated and no new contract nad come into being. ‘This appli-
cation was 8trenuously resisted by iir. Frankson on the grouna that
so to do would be to change the entire cnaracter of the appeal.
Rule i1d{2; of the Court of Appeal Rules, 194, provides

thei

(2} A respondent who desires LO contena
on the appeal that the decision of
the Court below should be affirmed
on grounds othzi than those relied
upon py that Court shall give
wtice to that effect specifying the
grounds ot that contention.”

The Rules further prov:.de that suci a respondent’'s notice
shall ke filed ana servea wiithin fourteen days aftexr the service
of tche notice and grounas of appeal and that without the leave of
the Court, the respondent snoulad not be entitled upon the hearing
of the appeal to contend that the decision of the Court should be
atfirmed upon any grounds nct reliea upon by the Court.

Vie refused the application for leave to file the respondent’s
notice at thavt time. We were oif the view that the findings of the
trial Judge on that issue were so clearly and succinctly set out,
that it could not have escaped the attention of counsel for the
respondent and that in the lzght of the supporting evidence, 1t
would be an act in futility to grant the application. &As the
attorney tor the appellants submitted, the amendament would indeed
change the character of the issues raised on appeal, would lead
o a lengthy adjournment, and in the peculiar cirrcumstances of
the adjudicating panel,; necessitate the re-~hearing of the arguments
before a different panel. Mr. Daley was therefore not permitied to

challenge the tinaing of the trial judge on this issue.
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A second guestion was posed by the trial judge and thuis

he answered in favour of the respondent. fie asked:

“"Ts there in existence a valid and

enforceable contract between

inr. Pratt and the Colleys?
To enable him to answer his own guestion, korris J. (Ag.) made
one important positive finding. He said:
it 1s clear from the evidence that

Mr. Pratt agreed to give the
Colleys a vendor's mortgage.,"

This findin

~

j was compelling and is 1n keeping with the

&

express languagye of the respondent in his letter of August 1, 19bi
to Livingston, Alexander and Levy. w#orxris J. (Ag.) however, found
that the Agreement to provide the vendor's mortgage was void for

uncertainty. He cited in support Re. Rich's Will Trusts (1%vZ]

16 sol. Jo. 75: Lee-Parker v, izzet {iHo. 2) 118723 ¢ All E.R. 603

and Scammell v, Quston |[1941; A.C. 251.

in Re Lee-Parker v, izzet (Wao, 2) i11%872: 2 All &.%. 440,

Goulding J. held that a stipulation in a Contract for sale which

provided thats

“This wmale. issubject to the purchaser
obtaining a satistfactory morigage®

wag void for uncertainty. At page 4603 of the Report he explained

f11s reasoning thus:

“ I agree moreover with the submission
of the plaintiffs’ counsel that the
condition is void for uncertainty.
I bear in mind the numerous warnings
of great judges against tco ready an
acceptance of submissions of that
character. ... #nevertheless it seens
to me that in the circumstances of the
present case the concept of a satis-
factory morvtgage 1s too indefinite for
the Court to ¢give it a practical meaning.
Everything is at large, not only matters
like rate of interest and ancillary
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"obligations, on which evidence
might establish what would be
usual or reasonable, but also
these two most essential points -~
the amount of the loan and the
terms of repayment.”

Brown v. fould and Ctihers {1571; 2 All E.R. 15U5 had been

cited to Goulding J, in Lee-Parkcr v. Izzct (supra) and he was able

to distinguish that case on the facts, but he e¢xpressly acknowledged
that onc¢ should not repose too ¢asily on the pillow of uncertainty
in order to dispose of the guestion of construing a written document.
Meggary J. irom the wealth of his gieat cxXperience, said 1n Brown

V. Gould (supra), that in construing a clause in a contract which is
said to be void rfor uncertcainty, the proper approach is that the
Court 1s reluctant to hold void for uncercainty any provision that
was intended to have legal «ft2ct.

To my mind it 1s clear beyond a peradventure that after the
fast and furious correspondence between the respondent and
Livingston, Alexander and Levy from February to August 198¥l, when
the respondent wrote in August agreeing to grant to the purchasers
a vendor's mortgage he intended that this would give pusiness
efticacy to the transaction between himself and the pusrchasers and
that his acceptance of the position long advocated by the purchasers
was intended to have legal effect.,

Unlike the situation in Lee-Payker v. izzet (No. 2) (supra),.

all the terms of the mortgage were known. The vendors were simply
substatuting themselves for Jamaica Hational Building Society. The
liortgage Deed which the attorneys prepared at the request of the
respondent was more favourable to the vendors than the original
stipulation 1in that the rate of interest was raised from 12% to i2k%
per annum. I cannot conceive of any reasonable mortgagee accting
reasonably rejectinyg such a mortgage out of hand without making

any counter proposals. Such a proposed mortgagee cannot approbate
and reprobate at the same tiwme. I therefore hold that the condition
which provided for a vendor's mortgage was not void for uncertainty

and conseguently the Agreement for Sale was enforceable.




rorris J. (Ag.) had refused an application by the appellants
to amend their defence to add a counter-claim for Specific
Performance. He did this on two bases. Firstly, the appellants
dic not serve notice upon the respondent to complete within a
stipulated time, Secondly although the defence was settled by
leading counsel there was no claim for Specific Performance and
no amendment of the defence had been applied for until the second
day of the trial, which he considered to be later even than the
1ith hour. It.appears from a subnission of counsel fcr the defence
that the appellants' attorney's attenction had been drawn to this
defect in the pleadings by the Court about a year before the case
came on for hearing and yet no action had been taken in that regard.

It seems to me that the allegacions in the defence especially
those appearing at paragraphs 12 and 13 make 1t unmistak ably clear
that the appellants were saying they were entitled to have their
contract specifically performed but that this has been frustrated
oy the act of the rvespondent in not signing the Transrfer. I do not
think that the appellants should suffer from the negligence of
counsel who failed to seek the appropriate rel:ief, provided that
they approached the Court while it was still scized of the matter.
I respectfully differ from the learned trial judge who categorised
the delay as abominable laches and i am of opainion that he ought
to have granted the amendment sought.

The appellants have been in possession of L1 Bronzewing Place
for some thirteen years and made it their home, So far as 1 am
aware, the respondent still resides outside of Jamaica. it would

be fruitless to ask the respondent to provide a wendor's moritgage



at this stage. [ would order that the appellants pay the balance
of the purchase price within twenty-one days of the end of the
arguments. There has been much fluctuation in interest rates
since 1961 and I would therefore order that the balance of the
purchase price bcar interest at the rate of 15% per annum trom
June 1960 to l8th Februvary 199%3. 1 would give leave to the
parties to apply so that consequential orders could be made to

work out the order made herein,
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FORTE, J.A.

In an agreement for sale, dated the 22nd January 1980,
Winnifred Pratt, the mother of the respondent, agreed to sell
premises 11 Bronzewing Place, in §t. Andrew o the appellants
for the price of $30,50(6.00. As the content of this agreement
formed an important element in the determination of this appeal
it will be referred to in greater detail later. It is
sufficient to state now, that subsequent to the signing of the
agreement it was discoverea that the respondent was registered
at the offices of the Registrar of Titles, as a joint tenant,
(with Winnifred Pratt) of the property. That fact not having
been disclosed by Winnifred Pratt, the respondent had not been
required to sign the agreement. Several communications made
thereafter between the respondent and the Attorneys, and his
conduct thereafter, suggest, however that the respondent did
in fact acquiesce to and subsequently became a party to the
transaction. Nevertheless, the contract not having been per-
formed, the respondent brought an action for recovery of
possession of the property, the appellants having taken posses-—
sion DLy consent of his mother prior to the signing of the
agreement, and in pursuance of an arrangement to pay $100 per
month rental until the completion of the contract of saile.

In support of his claim, the respondent in his statement
of claim alleged that he had never been a party to nor had he
ever consented to any such alleged agreement for salc. He
further averred that he had refused to sign an Instrument of
Transfer sent to him by the Attorneys, Messrs. Livingston,
Alexander & Levy, on the basis that he had never agreed to the
alleged agreement of sale, and that it {the agreement) was void
for uncertainty as to its terms. He claimed also that the
appellants, having taken possession of the property, had not

made any payment for its use and occupation, since 206th June 198G,
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and prayed for judgment for $6,300 specifically for the use
and occupation of the said premises,

The defendants/appellants relied in their defence on
the agreement for sale, mailntaining its validity, and at the
trial appl:ied to amend the defence to include a claim for
specific performance oif tne contract. This application was
refused by the learned trial judge, and that refusal grounded
one of the complaints to be determined in this appeal.

in giving Jjudgment for the plaintiff against both
appellants, the learned trial juage made the following orders:

"l. Xecovery of possession of premises
11 Bronzewing Place in the parish
of saint Andrew. Defendants to
quit and deliver up possession of
the sald premises on or before the
3lst January, i392.

4. Defendants to pay Plaintiff the
following sums for arrears of
rental and/or mesne profits and/
or use and occupation of the said
premiscess

Amount claimed in
Statement of Claim - 86,3006.00

A further sum of
$36,000.00 made up
as follows based

on the evidence of
Mr. Henrigues. Writ
was i1ssued 5th June
1985,

July 1%8b to June
1988 36 mths @ $25u
pciﬂo

4

9,000.40

July 1%838 to June
1990 24 mths @
$500.00 p.m,

i

12,000.00

July 1990 to June
1991 12 mths @ 380U
PR, - 9,000,000

July to September
1991 3 mths @ $1,890
P.m.

1
H

5,400.00
$42,300.00
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"3. Declaration that the pPlaintiff is
entitled to an order for the
removal of Caveat No. Y4734 lodged
by the Defenaants in the Reglstry
of Titles against the Certificate
cr Title for the said lands.

4, An order that thne said Caveat be
removed.

(62
°

Costs to che Plaintiff including
Plaintiff's airfare awarded con
2ist March, 1990 and further sum
awarded on the Lst Octower, 1999
to be agreaed or taxed,”

it 1s from thesc orders, that the appellants brought this
appeal. On the 18th Fepruary 1993, after three days of argument,
we allowed the appeal, set aside the order of the Court below,
and ordered that the Defence be amended to include a counterclaim
for Specific Performance of the contract for sale of the said
property. The respondent was ordered to specifically perxform
the contract to sell and transfer the said propeity to the
appellants for the sum of $30,500 upon the appellants paying to
haim the balance of the purchase price together with interest
thereon at the rate of 15% per annum commencing June 1980 to the
date of judgment of the Court of Appeal, within 21 days hereof
(i.e. léth February 1993). Liberty was given to apply and the
costs of the apellants botih nere and in the Court below were
ordered to be paid by the respondent, such costs to be taxed 1if
not agreed.

At that time, we promised Lo put our reasons in writing,
and in keeping with that promise I now do so,

in the appeal, three guestions were material in determin-
ing the fate of the parties -

(1) Was the appellant a party te the agree-

ment datea Zlst February 1980, which he
did not sign, but which was executed by
his mother the joint owner of the
property?

{2) Is there in existence an enfoirceable
contract? and
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(3) Was the learned trial judge correct
in refusing the application of the
appellant zo amend the Defence so as
to add therein, a counterclaim for
specific performance?

l. Was the appellant a Party to the Agreement

in relacion to this qguestion the learned trial judge
approached it in the following form =

"1. is there in existence some memo-
randum or note signed by Mr. Pratt
referable to the Agreement for Sale
Bxhibit 1 to sacisfy the relevant
provisions of Seccion 4 of the statute
of Frauds 1677 which became applicable
in Jamaica by virtue of U.K. Statute
<1 James 1 Chapter 1v now incorporated
in Section 4% of the Limitation of
hotion Act.”

He found the answer in words used by the respondent in several
letters which he wrote to the Artorneys concerning the sale
transaction, these letters having been written by him from his
home in Atlanta, where his mother was at that time, also resid-
ing. The learned judge found as follows:

"bealing with the firstc guestion I will
quote from the various exhibics in
order to arrive at a derermination
thereof.

{i) Exhibit ¢ - we the participants
regret having this
matter handled in
this manner ,.,."

"1 (as a valid parti-
cipant)®

{ii; Exhibit 5 - "as of the 3uth April
19381 we will not be
interested in selling
this place and all
previous arrangements
will be cancelled re
the sale®

(iii) Exhibit 9 - "my share of any monies
which may result is the
eguivalent of $1.00°7

{iv) Exhibit 1i -~ “dHowever at this time
rmy mother and me desire
to cancel the sale of
thie property, as the
purchaser has informed



~19-

- ne by lectter that she

has made othev mortgage
arrangemnents”
"in anticipation of a
refund of deposit I am
enclosing a bank draft
for the amount of U,.&.
$1.800°

(v) Exhibit 14 - "in answer to your question,
and to repeat an original
request, we will give the
mortgage, and we ireguire
that you prepare the
necessary documents for our
approval.”

i therefore answer the first question in the
affirmative.”

Thie finding remained unchallenged before us. it should
be noted, however, that an application made by counsel for the
respondent, late in the hearing of the appeal, and at a time when
he was in the middle of his submissions, for leave to file a
respondent ‘s notice was refused.

In any event, in my view the reasons given by the learned
trial judge for his conclusions in respect of that issue are sound,
and could not be successfully challenged.

The appeal therefore developad on the issues outlined in
paragraphs {(ii) - (iii) (supra).

2. Was there an enforceable contract?

in order to determine this guestion scme reference to the
evidence is necessary.

The agreement for sale stipulates as far as relevant, the
following -

Purchase Money - Thirty Thousand Five Hundread
Dollars {$306,500)

How Payable ~ (a) Deposit of $£5,500 having
been paid directly to the
vendor prior to the execution
hereof (the receipt whereof
is hereby acknowledged by the
vendor) ...

Carriage of

sale -~ Messrs, Livingston, Alexander
& Levy
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Then it stipulates a special condition which reads:

"2. This Agreement is subject to the
Purchasers raising a first legal
mortgage on the security c¢f the
premises in an amount of not less
than $21,000.00 through the
Jamaica National Building Society
at a rate of interest not cxceed-
ing 14% per anrum for not less
than 15 years con that Scciety's
usual terms and conditions. The
Purchasers hereby agree to use
their best endeavours to obtain
a Commitment for such Mortgage
and to communicate same to the
Vendor's Attorneys—~at-law on or
before the 31lst iMarch, 1980
failing which the Vendor shall
be at liberty to canccl the
Agreement. and refund the deposit
to the Purchasers free of interest
less $100.00 being the costs of
preparing this Agreement.”

In spite of the date upon which the agreement was executed,
it 18 revealed in the evidence that there was an understanding prior
thereto, for the purchase of the property, which caused the
appellant to pay $5,500 as a deposit in respect of the sale.

We look therefore on the history of the transaction which
began in August 1979. The Colleys having heard of the intended
sale of these premises went there and met Mrs. Pratt, who was as
it turned out the mother of the respondent. 7The selling price was
$30,500 and being interested, the Colleys were referred by
Mrs. Pratt to Mr. Alty Sasso whom she informed them, was dealing
with the property. As a result of the meeting with kr. Sasso, the
Colleys paid a total of $5,500 as a deposit on the purchase. This

amount was paid in three different tranches as fcllows:

3rd August, 1979 - $1,¢00
8th August, 1979 - $1.000
3rd October, 1879 - $3,500

On one of these occasions, when kr. Sasso and Mrs. Pratt were
present, Mr. Sasso suggested to the appellants that rather than

getting the mortgage from a financial institution, Mrs. Pratt
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should give the appellants the mortgage and this was agreed. This
was the evidence in that regard given by Mrs. Colley:

"I tendered the money eventually to

Myr. Basso. Mrs. Pratt was present.
There was a discussion about

mortgage. ir. Sasso suggestea that
Mrs. Pratt give us mortgage.

Mrs., Pratt agreed and kMr. Sasso
explained to me only suggestion was
made., The four of us were in the
dining room. Vendors would get more
money than 1f money were in the bank.
I would not be required to pay as
much as if I had gone through monetary
places. 1 agreed to accept proposal.®

Mr. Colley in his testimony substantiated the evidence given by his

wife when he said:
"We were going to finance it through
a financial corporation. 1In the
initial stages I approached Jamaica
National. We made an enquiry. Ve
did not make application tor mort-
gage. This was because when I met
Mr. s5asso and bkrs. Pratt for the
second time Mr. Sasso said Mrs. Pratt
should take the mortgage as it would
be more profitable for her 1 talked
it over with my wife and eventually
we agreed. FNrs. Pratt was there
when we agreed. I communicated this
to her."

Both Mr. & Mrs. Colley also testified that as a result of
the agreement for the vendor to give the mortgage they refrained
from proceeding with the application for mortgage to any financial
institution and in particular, the Jamaica Hational Building
Society, as stipulated in the special condition in the contract.
This evidence established that certainly with regards to Mrs. Pratt
there was an agreement that the vendor would give the purchasers
a mortgage so as to facilitate the completion of the contract.
However, the respondent was not at that stage, a party to such an
agreement and in fact did not become aware of the aagreement for sale,
until March or April 1980, when his mother was living with him in
Atlanta. He neverth:less, admitted that he was aware that an offer

had been made to the appellants that the vendor would give cthem the
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mortgage. Ag his mother had told him that it would be beneficial
to both of them if they give the Colleys a mortgage, he had
written to the Attorneys -~ Messrs. Livingston, Alexander & Levy,
agreeing to sign the transfer, which they had earlier sent to
him, if an agreement could be reached on the question of the
mortgage. In a letter dated 5th June 1981, he addressed the

Attorneys thus:

"Regrettably at this time I must refuse
to return the completed Transfer Docu-
ment, and I am sure that you do under-
stand why, yet if and when agreement
is reached on the matter of the
mortgage, I would be only too happy to
comply.”
Apparently, in pursuance of this, he again wrote to the Attorneys
on the 1lst August 1981, on this occasion giving instructions for
the martgage documents to be prepared. He wrote:
“In answer to your question and to repeat
an original request, we will give the
mortgage and we require that you prepare
the necessary documents for ouxr approval,
and at which time I shall complete and
return the transfer document.”

The respondent in giving those instructions wae expressing
acquiescence with the original agreement entered intg by his mother -
with the appellants i.e. to provide the mortgage to tbe Cedlsye.

In keeping with the instructions in his lettex, the
Attorneys prebared and sent for his approval mortgage document which
was exhibited at the trial. The schedule of the mortgage document
described the mortgagors as Othniel Bernard Colley and Beverley
Noreen Colley, and the mortgagees as Winnifred Cecelia Pratt and
Carol Pratt. The sum of $21,000 was the amount of the mortgage to
be advanced by the mortgagees jointly at an interest rate of 12%%
per annum, Significantly the terms of this proposed mortgage
compares with the mortgage specified in the Agreement to be applied

for to Jamaica National Ruilding Society, the latter also being for

the sum of $21,000 but requiring an interest rate of 12% per annum




being %% peir annum less than asked for by the former. WNeverche-
less, the regspondent refused to sign the document.
on the backgrouna of this evidence, the learned trial
judge came to a negative finding on this issue on the apparent
bases of (i) uncertainty and (11i) that the parties were not ad iden
“thet the plaintiff should give the defendant a vendor's morigage.”
He aisposcd of {1} by stating:

“i{t is clear from the =vidence that My. Prattc
agrecd te give the Colleys a vendor‘s mort-
gage. indeed, from the outset i1t appears
that both kMrs. Pratt and Mr. Sasso explained
to the Colleys that it would be in the
interest of all concernced if a vendor's
mortgage wers given, It must be rencmbered
that the terms of Ypecial Condition 2 in
Exhibit 1 were spelt out. It has been held
in Re Rich's Wwrll Trusts (1962), 196 Sol. J.
75 that where a contract for sale providing
that the vendor's solicitors should "be
instructed to obtain and fix a suitable

a failure for uncertainty, ifollowing

Scammell v, Custon 1941 a.C. 251. in

Lee Parker v. Izeit Wo, 2 (1972) 2 A.E.R. 803 where

the parties agreed for the provision of a

'satisfacteory mortgage' there was no valid

contract.”

Apart from making this statement, howevey, it is unclear

whether on the basis of the cited cases, che learned judge was

concluding that the contract was void for uncertainty. 1In the

casc of Lee Parker v. Izzet {(Ho. ) (1972) 2 All E.R, 800, on which the

learned trial judge appears to have relied, the special condition
in that contract specified "This sale 1s subject to the purchaser
obtaining a satisfactory mortgage.,® Goulding J, held that the

condition was voida for uncertainty and gave the following reasons:

“it seems to me that in the clrcumstances
of the present case the concept cf a
satisfactory meortgage is toc indefinite
for the court to give it a practical
meaning. Everything is at large, not
only matters like rate of interest and
ancillary obligations,; on which evidence
might establish what would be usual or
reasonable, but also on thaese most
egsential points - the amount of the
loan and thc terms of repayment.®
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in the 4th Edition of the text “Contract & Conveyance’ by
J.T. Farrand, the author in commenting on the dicta of Goulding J,
(supra) expressed the view that "he swam rather against the more
recent tide in the courts which shows a growing reluctance to hold
void for uncertainiy any provision that was intenged to have legal
effect,”

In making this comment, the author had in mind the dicta

of Megarry J, in the case of Brown v. Gould (1971} 2 All E.R. 1505,

in that case degarry J, stated the basic principles applicable in
cases of uncertainty, and which 1s consistent with ny own views.
He said:s

“1 think the starting point on any question
of uncertainty must ke that of the couri’s
reluctance to holid an instrument void for
uncertainty. Lorce Hardwickse LC once said
'A court never construes a devise void,
unless it i1s so absolutiely dark, thet they
cannot find out the testator's mcaning':
Minshull v, Minshull {31737} 1Atk 411 at
414 Lerd Brougham said: ‘The difficuluy
must be o great that Lt amounts to an
impossipility, the doubt so grave
that there is not even an inclination
of the scales one way': Doe d Winter V.
Perratt (16433 9 CL & Fin 606 at ©dY.
in a well known statcmeny, Sir Geoirge
Jessel MR said that the court would not
hola a will void for uncertazinty' ...
unless 1t 1s utterly impossible to put
a meaning uvpon it. The duty cf the
Court is to put & fair meaning on the
terms used, and not ... LO rCpos& on
the casy pillow of saying that the whole
is void for uncecrtainty’: Re Roberts,
Repington v. kKoberts-Gawen [isglj 19 Ch
D 520 at 52%. That this is not a
doctrine confined to wills bul is one
which applics to other instruments, such
as planning pcrrmissions, 1s shown by cases
such as Fawcett Properties Ltd v.
Buckingham County Council {19&¢3] 3 All ER
503. The second gquestion is that of the
types of uncertainty. The basic type
{and on one view the only true type}) is
uncertainty of concept, as contrasted with
mere difficulty of application ... if it is
impossible, on construction of the
condition, wo reach a conclusion as to
what was in the draftsman’s mind the
condition is neaningless and must be
readt as pro non sScripto.’
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“Putting 1t another way, the guestion
is one of linguistic or semantic
uncertainty, and not of difficulty of
ascertcainment: see dMcPhail v. Doulton
{19707 % All E.R. <2k av 247, per ‘
Lord Wilberforce.® |

in support ot his view that :the Courts are always reluctant
to render a condition bad for uncertainty Megarry J,; called in aid

7

dicta in the case of Greater London Council v Connolly {i9707i 1

All E.R. 870, by Lord Denning BR:

"The courts are always loath to hold a
condition bad for uncertainty. They
will give 1t & reasonable interpreta-
tion whenever possible.,”

and that of Lord Pearson:

“ks Lord Denning MR has said, the

courts are always loath to hola a

clause invalid for uncertainty if

a reasonable meaning can be given

to it, and it seems to me easy to

give & reasonable meaning to this

condition.”
Where a clause in a contract is intended to have legal effect the
Court will always be reluctant to hold the contract void for
uncertainty, and will only do so where no reasonable interpreta-
tion cor reasonable meaning can be given to the impeached clause.
Mere difficulty in ascertaining the meaning of the clause, cannot
void the contract - it must be impossible so to do.

On that background, i now exanmine the factual basis for
the complaint. The specific condition in the contract has already
been recorded (supra). It subjects the agreement to the

purchasers raising a first legal mortgage and thereafter gives
particulars i.e. an amcunt not less than $2Z1,000 at an interest
rate of 12% per annum for a period of not less than 15 years. An
examination of the agreement discloses that though dated the 2énd
February 198U, it was signed on the 22nd January 198¢, and of
more significance, drawn up on a date prior to the IlZzth November
1979. This is evidenced from the fact that a completion date of

31lst December 1579, was anended to read 30th April 1940, and the
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anendment duly initialled. In addition, the special condition
required the purchasers to obtain a Commitment for the mortgage
and to communicate game tvo the vendors "on or before the 1lzth
November 1879%" that date though being amended to read 3lst March
1960,

These amendments are consistent with the appellants’
testimony that very ¢arly in the transaction they were reguested
to consent to a vendor's mortgage to replace the nortgage
condition specified in the contract. Having accepted that offer,
the vendor's mortgage to which they agreed, being a substitution
for the original arrangement must necessarily rcelate to a
mortgage in the same terms as that which is contained in the
special condition i.e. a mortgage of not less than $21,000 for
not less than 15 years at an intevest rate of 12% per annum.
In my view, no uncertainty exxists in relation to the agreement
for the vendor's mortgage, as the essential terms are clear, and
are not such that it is impossibkble to give a meaning theretc.
indeed, it appears that the Atterneys who drew up the mortgage
document at the reguest of the respondent f£ollowed closely the
details of the mortgage required in the special condition of the
agreement i.e. specifying an amount of 521,000 at a rate of
interest of 12%% per annum which is %% per annum in ¢xcess of
that contained in the original agreement. In ny view, the res-
pondent's refusal vo szgn the mortgage was unreasonable in the
circumstances, the terms in relation to the interest payments,
being more favourable to him than that which was originally
contracted. Feor ithose reasons i coacluded that neither the
special condition nor the agrecment for a vendor's mortgage
which was substituted therefor is unceritain, as there was an
intention on koth sides for the contract to have legal efiect,
and far from embodying a concept which can be voided for

uncertainty, the cterms are clearly and eas:ily ascertained and
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can theretore be given legal effect,

Partles not ad ijidem

The learned trial Jjudge in coming to his conclusion posed
the following guestion -

"However, an additional guestion arises
based on the foregoing. Were the
parties ad idem that Plaintziff should
give the Defendants a vendo:r's mortgage.
Here I guote from the evidence of
Mrs. Colleys
i asked Plaintiff on the phone if

he was still giving me mortgage,
He said, yes but I did not bkelieve
him, ®
I went to Jamaica Teachers Association
Housing Corporation in aApril because
i did not trust the Plaintiff.!
‘“Even sincc I have been sued 1 have
not got a moritgage commitment, '
Despite this she said sihie felt she had
an enforceable agreemant. She had
lawyers acting fcr her and has at all
times had the palance of the purchase
rnoney., "
Ag no specific answer is given to the guestion posed, it

1s assumed that the learned trial judge's references to the
evidence led him to conclude that the parties were not ad idem
that the respondent should give the appellant a vendor's mort-
gage. 1t is difficulc to understand this conclusion, as the
respondent. wrote to the Attorneys instructing them to prepare
the vendor's mortgage for his signature. The evidence reveals
that the telephone conversation alluded teo by the learned trial
judge, was as a result of a letter written by the respondent to
the appellants, implying *that he was not giving the vendoxr's
morctgage. The relevant section of the letter dated 2uth March
1981 rcads:

L'k}

Oon the Znd Feby 1981, due to an
aniversary concersn, I sint a
letter of enguiry into the state
of the situation to the Lawycrs,
and in return on the 4th March
1981 I received the Transfer of
Registration of Titles, to be
signed by me, and L have since
written vo the lawyers to inform
them that 1 have no intention of
doing so, I know how the pioperty




"ie ¢going to be palid for and this is to
pe concluded by the mid April 1981,
and this brings me to the point where
I know that you share my concern and
want to have this indefinite situation
ended, so I am now stating ithat as of
the 30th April 1981 we will not be

e interested in selling this place anc

(‘\ all previous arrangemcnis will be

- cancelled re the sale, and should this

become necessary then there will be
furcher communication on the matzer.

I find this to be a necessary yet
regrectable action but as you are
aware that this matcer has been pend-
ing for more than a year, and I an
sure that you are as disgusted witi
the whole thing as we are. Your
comments will pe welcome, also any
suggestions you may wish to make.*®

in relation to this letter {Exhibit %), and her reaction

P

(MH to 1t, Mrs. Colley gave the following testimony:

"I next received & lettaer from Mr. Pratt
Bx. 5. I responded to this lettexr by
¢alling haim in Atlanta. This letter had
upset me. I askea him if he were not
going to give us the mortgagce again as
letter was adifferent. He said I was not
to trouble myself about letter as it was
just to spur lawyers on. I told him he
should therefore speak with lawyers., He
said he had also written to them. X
went to Jamaica Teachers' Association
before I spoke to him. I mads certain
arrangements with JTA Housing Corporation.”

R}

. And in cross-exanination:
"Approached Jamaica Teachers' Association
Housing Corporation despite the fact
that I had agreed to a vendor's mortgage
becauvse I did not want time for completion
to come and I did not have noney. I asked
plaintiff on the telephone if he was still
giving me mortgagc. iHe sald yes but I aid
not believe him. (Ex. 5 shown to witnessg).
He told me on the phone after I got this
letter that he was going to ¢give me the
mortgage ...

i went to J.T.A. Housing Corporation in
(o April because I did not trust plaintiff.
k\‘ f did not get impressicn he was selliing
the property ut 1 daid not like tone of
letter.”
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in my view, this evidence demonstrates that the respondent
and the appellants were agreed that the respondent would give a
vendor ‘s mortgage, but that the respondent had written that lexter
{Ex. b) merely to cause the lawyers to act upon the matter with
greater expedition. The appellants, given the content of the
levier, however, decided not to take any chanceé, and to have money
in place in the event that the respondent would renege on his
agreement, and in their understanding that would mean an e¢nd to the
sale. The evidence shows unambiguously that the appellants were
of the unaerstandinyg that the respondent would offer a vendor's
mortgage, and that the respondent per the evidence of the conver-
sation with hNrs. Colley., and his instruciions to the lawyers to
prepare the mortgage document also had the same understanalng,
Hirs. Colley's action in seeking financing elsewhere was merely
an acc done out of caution in the event that the respondent failed
to perform the agreement. In these circumstances, a conclusion
that the parties werce not ad idem, must be in error. The learned
trial judge was therefore wrong when he came to that conclusion.

in ny view, for the reasons wetailed above, therc was an
enforceable contract between the partics.,

3. Refusal to Amend Defence to include
Counteiclain for specific Periormance

In the course of the trial the learned trial judge refuscd

an application made by counsel for the defendants/appellants to amend

the defence so as to inciude a counterclaim for specific performance
cf the contract. in his judgment he gave the following reasons;:

"Beforec disposing with this aspect of the
matter, may 1 ke permitted one final
observation. Despite the view of the
relevant law expressaed by the then
Atterney—-ac~law for the Defendants in the
2nd paragraph of his letter dated 18th
May 1981, Ex. iz, there has becen no
attempt to file a counterclaim for speci-~
tic performance until the eleventh hour
had passcd viz the second day of the
hearing of this macter. It follows thecre-
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"fore that even if there haa in fact been
a valid and enforceable contract the
ejuitabie remedy of specific performance
would pe defeated by, as kr. Daley put
it, abominable laches.”®

in advancing his argumenits O suppoic his contention that the
learnea tr:al judge erred 1in refusing the applicavion to amend,
Mr. HMaurice Frankson for the appellants relied on the provisions
of vection 259 Title 27 of the Judicature (Civil Procedure (ode)
Act which provides -~

"The Court or a Judge may, at any stage
of ithe proceedings, allow either party
to alver or amenc his indorsement or
pleadings in such manner, and in such
terms as may pe put just, and all such
amendmenis shall be made as may be
necessary for the purpose of determin-
ing the real guestion in contiroversy
pbetween the parties.”

The section, permits any amendment necessary for the Court's

determinacion of the dispute between thse partles and amendments
should pe granted so long as it will not de injusiice to the other
partcy.

The words ¢f Bowen LJ in Cropper v. Smith (lugé; 265 Ch, D.

at pages 710-711 explains the proper approach:

“ir is a well establishec principle
that the object of the Court is to
decide the rights of the partvies
and not to punish them for mistakes
they make 1n the conduct of their
cases by deciding otherwise than
in accordance with their righus ...
L know of no kind of ergor or mis-
take which, if not fraudulent ox
intendea to overreach, tne Court
ought not to correct, if 1t can be
done without injustice o the other
party Courts deo not exist foxr ithe
sake of discipline, but for the
sake ot deciding matters in coniyo-
versy, and 1 do not regard such
anendmernt as a matter of favour or
gracg ... 41U Secms to wme that as
soon as it appears that the way 1n
which a party has framed hig case
will nct lead to a decision ot the
real matter in coniroversy, it is
as much a matter of right on his
part to have it corrected i1if 1t can
ke done without injustice, as eny-
thing else in the case 1s a matter of
right.”
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As the case dealt with an agrecement for the sale of
property, and in particuler the enforceability of the agree-
ment; a finding that there was an enforceable agreement,
especially having regard to the fact that the defendants/
appellants were and had been in possession for a long period,
would necessarily give rise to the question of the performance
of the contract. In the statement of claim, the respondent
asked for an Urder for iecovery of posscssion, and in roesponse
the appellants relied on the agreement to defeat the claim,
The real gquestion must have related to who was entitled to owner-
ship of the propaerty. There can be no doubt therefore that an
order for Specific Performance, were the contract found to be
¢nforceable, would resolve the real controversy between the
parties,

would an amendment, especially at that late stage, cause
lnjusticc to the respondent? To answer that guestion a look
at the Defence filed is necessary:

Paragraph 12 reads:

"Notwithstanding repeated requests and
enguirics by the Defendants since the
executicin of the said agrecment the
plaintiff and Mys. Pratc have failed,
neglected and refused and continued
to fail, neglect and refuse to take
any steps towards completion of the
saxd agreement for sale. more parti-

cularly, they have fziled, neglected
and rofuscd to present to the

Defendants an excecuited registraivle
Transfer.®

Paragraph 13:
“The Defendants have at all materzal
times been and are now ready, willing
and able to fulfil all their agrecd
obligations.”
The defendants in those twe paragraphs alleged the
piaintiffs’' refusal to meet their obligations under the contract,

and maintained their (the defendants') ability and willingness to

meet their obligations, factors which if proven, demonstratea an
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intention on their part to have the conuract performed. The
Defence containad in my view all the ingredients upon wihilch a
prayer ror specific performance could be based, but alas -
‘‘‘‘ fell short of asking for iu.
O
Ln those cirvcumstances, the plaintiff/respondent would

have been certainly on notice, ithat the dofcndants were main-
taining. a right to the pioperty based on an enforceable agree-
ment which should be performed. Conseguently, 1n my view, an
amendment given the pleadings, cculd not have caused any
injustice to the plaintift/respondent and would have enabled
the Court below to resolve the real issue petween tiie parvies.
(:: For those reasons I agree with the decision that the vefence

shoula be amended to include a counterclaim for Specific

Performance,

As there was sufficient evidence to base a conclusion
that the appellants were ready and willing to perform the
agreement, and that the respondent was so informed by the Attorneys
and despite of that, failed to perform the contract by refusing to
execute the vendor's mortgage ana the transfer, 1 also agreed to

<~1 the order for gpecific Pertormance in vhe cerms detailed in the

Ordey,
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GORDON, J.A.

% have secn the dratt juagments of Rowe, P and Forte, J.&.
i agrce with the reasons they advance and the conclusion. I
will make biief comments.
N
<;) Mrs. Winnifred Pratt who lived at 11 Bronzewing Place
Kingston 2y desired to go to the United States of america to
reside with her son, the respondent, at his invitation. She, in
furtherance of her desire, had to dispose of the house she owned
and occupied. OLhe unuertook to sell samz te the Colleys and
accepted firom them a deposit of $5,500 paid in threc instalments
$1,GUUF $1,000 and 33,500 on 3rd August, sith August and 3rd

- Ucteber 1979 respectively., Mirs. Pratt was anxious to secure hoer

C
’ house in her absence from the Island. she wanted the Colleys
to take possession and occupy same promptly. The Colleys had &
problem in that they were selling their house in order to acqguire
Mrg. Pratt's and had no desire to leave theirs unoccupiéd and
insecure. krs. Pratt offered the solution to this problem. She
offered her handyman to be used by the Colleys as caretaker of
1l Bronzewing Place until the Colleys were able to cccupy same,

in furtherance of the said agreement the Collcys undcrtook
to pay to prirs. Pratt rental of $100 per month until the contract
was completcd. The first receipt for rental is dated Lith October
1979. 7The negotiations for sale woere conducied by the Colleys with
Mrs. Pratt and hy, alty Sasso who acted as nrs. Pratt’s agent and
advisor. Prioxr to the exccution of the fermal contract Mrs. Pratt
agreed to grant the purchasers a wortgage for the balance of the
purchase prica yet when the contract was formalised special
(:? condition 2 required this amount to be saecured by a mortgage given
by the Jamaica Wational Building Society.

The vendor's Ativornays subsaquently discovered that the title
to il Bronzewing Placce was in the names of Mrs. Pratt and her son

the plaintiff as joint tenants. NMrs. Pratt dealt with the
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property as if she was the sole beneficial owner. The eviaence
discloses <hat the plazntiff knew of the cxistence of the contract
frem about darch 1560 when his mother had taken up resiaence with
him and heg, by exhibit 3 wrote o the Attorneys for the vendor on
2na February 1981 seeking a statemeat of account. He never
indicated disapproval of the agreement. In nis levver of the 7th
March 1951, exhibit 4, the plainciff referred to his mother and
himself as "we the vendors® expressly confirming his approval
of the contract for gale. His complaint in this and the previous
and subseguent letters was digsatisfaction with the accounting
for the sums outstanding.

‘ihe ovidence cculd leaa one to conclude that the manner in
which Mrs. Pratt conducted the negotiaticns clearly indicated that
she was the beneficial owner of the propeity albeit that the lega
estate was vesiad in herself and the plaintiff jointly. He held
in trust for her. This conclusion is fortified by the declaration
against interest made by the respondent in the letter he wrote on
5th June 1981, ex. 9. 1n the scceond paraygyraph he states:

“With reference to the Appreoval given by
the Exchange Control, it 1s my intent

Lo express the gravibude of my mother
and myself, although © may add that my
share of any monies which may result

4 the equivalent of $1.00, also 1L was
not the original intent to remove the
money from Jamaica even at this time, but

on the contrary this was to have beoen
reinvested theroe.” |Emphasis aadedj

There is further support for this conclusion in the facc that on

his evidence he prepared foir his mother's signature tne letter

dated 15th February 194% ex. ¥, purporting to be a notice “o guit,
However special conditlon 2 is vicwed the purchasers were

to have the balance of the purchase money secured by a mortgage

on the premises. This could only be acnieved by a transfer making

the title available to be charged. The respondant’s failure to

conply thwarteda the appellants' efforts to complete.
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property as if she was the sole beneficial owner. The evidence
discloses that the plaintiff knew of the cxistence of the contract
from about darch 154U when his mother had taken up residence with
him and he, by exhibit 3, wrote vo the Attorneys for the vendor on
Z2nd ¥ebruary 1901 seeking a statementc of account. He never
indicated disapproval of the agreement. in his levever of the 7th
March 1951, exhibit 4, the plaanviff referred to his mother and
himgelf as "we the vendors® expressly confirming his approval

of thie contract for gale. His complaint in this and the previous
and subseguent letters was dissatisfaction with the accounting
for the sums outstanding.

‘he evidence could lead cone to conciude that the manner in
which Hrs, Pratt conducted the negotiations clearly indicated that
she was the beneficial owner of the propeity albeit that the legal
estate was vesited in hersclf and the plaintiff jeintly. He held
in trust for her, This conclusion is fortified by the declaration
against interest made by the respondent in the lecter he wrote on
5th June 19%81,ex. 9. in the sccond paragraph he states:

"With reference to the Approval given by
the Exchange Contirol, it 1s my intent

and mys2lf, although I may add that my
share of any monies which may result

16 the equivalent of $1.006, also 1t was
not the original intent to remove the
noney from Jamaica even at this timo, but
on the contrary this was to have been
reinvested there.® [EBumphasis aaded |

There is further support for this conclusion in the facc that on

his evidence he prepared for his mother's signature tne letter

dated 15th February 1982, ex. 4, purporting to be a notice to guit.
Bowzver special condition £ is viewed ihe purchiasers were

to have the balance of the purchase money secured by a mortgage

on the premises. This could only be achieved by a transfer making

the title available to be charged. The respondent's failure to

cormply thwarted the appellants' efforts o complete.
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The letters written by the responcdent show that he was kecnly
interested in obtaining the maxinum returns possible from the
sale of the house. [e agreed to give a mortyage and indeea he
instructed his Attorneys to prepare the mortgage deed yet he
refrained from exscuting same. He apparently was dissatisfied
with a term or terms yet he never said what he desired. Having
invited his mother to lecave her home (o reside with him it 1s
inconceivable that he was unaware of the disposition she had
nade of this singular asset, her home, before she left Jamaica.
it 18 odd that after a flurry of correspondence in 1861
ending with ex. 6§ of the 15th February 1562, there was no

further correspondence exhibited. Alas, his mother died in

Uctober iS84 and he was free of any restraint she might have

exercised., He filed his writ on 15th June 19465. The respondentis

interest in the return he could yet from the house is exhibited
in his attempt to have same valued.

in Alele vs. Brown 5.C.C.a. No, 111/¢9 dated l4éth March

1991, (unreported) this court recognized the significant upward

novement of roal estate values that coumenced in the 196is.

. Pratt knew that the Colleys parted with their home

0

Laxs

U

in order to purchase her property. “he contract is valid and
N . b, . N « /
enforceable, Yhe Colleys are justly ¢ntiiled to the judgment of

the Court.



